The Genitive Case

The genitive case is used in Czech quite often. It can be used after prepostions, after some verbs and it can also express meaning of quantity. Situations, when the Genitive is used, must be remembered.
We can use the Genitive case:
1) After prepositions:
DO – to, into (the place) 
· to, up to, till, untill (the time)
OD – from, away from (place of person)
       -from, since (the time)
Z, ZE – from (place)
KROMĚ – except, besides
VEDLE  - next to
U – next to, near, at somebody´s place
BLÍZKO - near
UPROSTŘED – in the middle of
KOLEM, OKOLO–around (the place), about (the amount of something)
BĚHEM - during
MÍSTO – instead, instead of
PODLE – according
Something more about the ussage of these prepositions:
The preposition DO connected with a place is used only when it express the motion to a closed place (for instance a building or a box or a bag)
Jdu do školy (gen.). – I´m going to school. Škola is a building  - a closed place.
Dám sešit do tašky (gen.) – I´ll put an exercisebook to a bag. Taška  is closed again.
Forests                                            - are closed in Czech                 DO + gen.
Parks
Cities, towns, villages
States
If we want to get to an open place, ve have to use the preposition NA  + acc.
Be carefull – some places use preposition NA even if they are closed  - You can see them in video Accusative.

The preposition Z means from – from inside of a place – for instance 
Jdu ze školy (gen.) –I´m going from school.
Vezmu sešit z tašky (gen.) – I´ll take an exercisebook from a bag.

The preposition OD means also from, but not from „inside“, but from „outside“.  It means, that something is moving only in a direction from a place, but it wasn´t inside.
For instance
Tramvaj číslo 4 jede od Lékařské fakulty k Hlavnímu nádraží. – The tram number 4 goes from Medical faculty to The Main Station. – A tram goes only in direction from Medical faculty, it was not inside.
The preposition OD means also „from somebody´s place“ – for instance
Jdu od kamaráda (gen.). – I am going from my friend´s place.

Prepositions DO and OD can have a time meaning too.
For instance:
Mám volno od soboty (gen.) do neděle (gen.). – I have free time since Saturday till Sunday.

The preposition BLÍZKO means NEAR.
VEDLE means NEXT TO.
                              U means both - either NEAR or NEXT TO.
For instance:
Hlavní nádraží je blízko pošty (gen.).  The Main Station is near the post office.
Hlavní nádraží je vedle pošty. The Main Station is next to the post office.
Hlavní nádraží je u pošty. The Main station is near / next to the post office.
You can use U instead of BLÍZKO or VEDLE.

The preposition U means also „at somebody´s place“.
Jsem u kamaráda.
Jsem u doktora.
Jsem umaminky.

Examples of other prepositions:
Umí to všichni kromě tebe (gen.).
Náměstí Svobody je uprostřed Brna (gen.).
Do kampusu jedu kolem / okolo hřbitova (gen.).
Během tohoto semestru (gen.) jsem se zlepšil v češtině.
Půjdu tam místo tebe (gen.).
Učím se podle učebnice (gen).
You can see more about prepositions in the video Prepositions.



2) After some verbs:
(the most important)
Ptát se – to ask questions           Ptám se učitelky (gen.) na gramatiku.
Bát se – to be scared /afraid of  Bojím se zkoušky (gen).
Mít strach z – to be scared /afraid of Mám strach ze zkoušky (gen).
Účastnit se /zúčastnit se – to take part in Zúčastním  se konference (gen.).
Všímat si / všimnout si – to notice Nevšímám si ničeho (gen. – nic).
Zamilovat se do –to fall in love with  Mladý muž se zamiloval do pěkné slečny (gen.).

3) Partitive Genitive
The Genitive case can express a part of some thing - NĚCO  NĚČEHO – something of something:
Litr vody – a liter of watter
Krabice mléka – a box of milk
Kilo cukru– a kilogram of sugar
Kousek  sýra – a piece of cheese
Lžíce polévky- a spoon of soup
Krajíc chleba – a slace of bread
Čtvrt         -a quarter
Půl            a half


After words:
Mnoho  - a lot
Moc       -a lot
Hodně  - a lot
Málo      - a little
Trochu   -little
Dost        - enough
Méně       - less
Více          - more
Většina    - most 
Kolik?       - hom much, how many

Většina studentů(gen.) nemluví česky.  – Most of students doesn´t speak Czech.
Mám dost času(gen.)– I have enouhg time.
Kolik je hodin (gen.)? – What is the time?

4) After numbers higher than 4:
Mám pět bratrů a sedm sester.
Je jedenáct hodin.
Mám deset tisíc korun.

5) With dates and hours (time):
Je osmého (gen.) února (gen). It ´s the eight of February. The first genitive is the genitive form of the ordinal numeral osmý – the eighth and února followes a number higher than 4.
Je půl čtvrté. – It´s half past three. (a half of the four o´clock)

6) Possessive meaning:
Svetr maminky (gen). – a sweter of a mum
Hlavní město České republiky (gen.).  – the capital of Czech Republic


Remember: If you use in English the preposition OF, you usually use the Genitive in Czech.

Making the Genitive:

Question:    (bez)    koho – (without ) whom Koho is kdo in Gen.
                      (bez )  čeho – (without) what Čeho is co in Gen.

Masculines animate (people + animals)
Ma: + hard or neutral cons. – A                        pán – pána
                                                                               student – studenta
mobile E                tatínek – tatínka
                                                                                                               pes - psa
        + soft c. + ending - tel + s,z  - E                          muž – muže
                                                                                        učitel – učitele
mobile E         cizinec – cizince
Mi: + hard or neutr. cons. -  U                               sešit – sešitu
                                                                                   dům – domu
                                                                                   stůl – stolu
         + soft cons.                  – E                              čaj – čaje
Mobile E                 koberec – koberce (carpet)

Several Mi + names of months have animate ending–A                  
oběd – oběda (lunch)
večer – večera (evening)
čtvrtek (Thursday), sýr(cheese), kostel(church), les (forrest), chléb (Bread – form chleba has been already the Genitive), jazyk tongue/language, Londýn, Berlín, Řím - ROME, Jeruzalém

ADJECTIVES: soft adjectives have ending - ÍHO
For instance:  moderní -  moderního
                         zahraniční - zahraničního
                        hard adjectives have endind - ÉHO
For instance: velký – velkého
                         mladý - mladého
Feminins:
F: + a – Y                           maminka – maminky
                                           káva – kávy
     +e/ě – E/Ě                    nemocnice – nemocnice
                                            přítelkyně – přítelkyně
This form stays the same.

     + cons.   –E                  tramvaj– tramvaje
      + st, +t, +c    - I             bolest - bolesti (pain)
                                              kost – kosti (bone)
                                              pleť – pleti (complection)
noc – noci (night)
mobile E               mrkev – mrkve (Carrote)
 sůl – soli (salt)

ADJECTIVES:  soft adjectives have ending–Í, like in the nominative
                                                 moderní = moderní
                          hard adjectives have ending -  É
For instance: velká  - velké
                         tlustá – tlusté
N:+ o – A                                    město – města
pivo – piva
+e – E                                      srdce – srdce
                                                 moře – moře
-ETE                                         kuře – kuře
                                                 rajče – rajčete
                                                 dítě – dítěte
+ í – Í                                        nádraží – nádraží
                                                 zápěstí – zápěstí (wrist)

Nouns of latin origin having in Nominative ending – um have in Genitive ending – A
Centrum – centra
Muzeum – muzea
Adjectives:
Soft adjectives  - ÍHO
Moderní – moderního
Hard adjectives – ÉHO
Velké - velkého
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Ma + Mi – Ů                        profesor- profesoři – profesorů

F + a -         0                         žena – ženy – žen
Feminines having two or three cons. before -A receive an insered –e- because of easier pronunciation:                      maminka – maminky – maminek
                                                lékařka – lékařky – lékařek
                                                firma – firmy – firem
     +e  -      Í                             židle – židle – židlí
      +ice, + ile – 0                   nemocnice – nemocnice – nemocnic
                                                 košile – košile – košil (shirt)

N:+ o – 0                                 pivo – piva – piv
                                                 pero – pera – per
        + iště  - 0                         parkoviště – parkoviště – parkovišť
                                                   letiště – letiště - letišť
Also neutrals having more consonants before – O receive an insered –e-.
                                                  Tričko – trička – triček (T – shirt)
                                                   Divadlo – divadla - divadel
+ e – Í                                   srdce – srdce – srdcí
Moře – moře – moří 
          -AT                                   rajče – rajčata – rajčat
                                                    Kuře – kuřata – kuřat
            + í          -Í                       zápěstí – zápěstí – zápěstí

You have to remember exceptions:
Dítě – dítětě – DĚTÍ
Lidé – LIDÍ
Peníze - PENĚZ
Přítel – přátelé – PŘÁTEL
Tisíc – tisíce – TISÍC
Den – dny /dni- DNŮ/DNÍ-both forms are correct
Obyvatel – obyvatelé – OBYVATEL (inhabitant)
If you ask someone How old are you? – You can say Kolik máš roků? or Kolik máš let? 
Rok – roky – roků
Léto – léta – let –Léto means summer but it can be used also in meaning year.

Adjectives:
Soft – ÍCH – moderní – moderních
Hard –ÝCH- velký - velkých

Be carefull also of verbs:
1 student JE / PÍŠE/ STUDUJE.
2,3,4 studenti JSOU/ PÍŠOU / STUDUJOU.
5,6,7……studentů JE/ PÍŠE / STUDUJE. –If we have a number higher than 4, the verb is in the singular form!!!!!!!!









